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No. Question Answer 

1.  

Section 1.1. – Purpose and Overview  

What is the anticipated call volume per 
night, week, month and/or year?  

This is a new service. No data is available. 

2.  

Section 1.1. - Purpose and Overview 

Is the vendor required to obtain general 
liability insurance coverage?  

Yes, the vendor must obtain and maintain in force general liability insurance 
coverage as outlined in Form P-37 Agreement, Section 14 Insurance.  

3.  

Section 1.1.2. – Purpose and Overview 

Are there any specific tasks the vendor must 
undertake to assist in locating appropriate 
emergency placements for children during 
after-hours?  

See Section 3.5.3.    

4.  

Section 1.1.3. - Purpose and Overview 

a)   Are there any specific tasks the vendor 
must undertake to assure after-hour 
access for medical providers to obtain 
consent for medical treatment for 
children in DCYF guardianship?  

b)   Will this require an on-call person 
locally? 

c)   Will the vendor be an approved 
authorizer for services? 

d) May the vendor scan an authorization 

a) See Section 3.6. 

b) No. 

c) No. 

d) Yes. 
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form to the medical provider? 

5.  

 Section 1.2.1. – Work Facilities 

Do the vendor-selected, off-campus work 
facilities have to be located in NH?     

No.  

6.  

Section 1.4. – Vendor  Selected Off-
Campus Work Facilities 

May the vendor utilize more than one office 
space furnished and equipped with 
telecommunication hardware and computer 
hardware on:  

a) A regular basis?  

b) As part of an emergency/disaster 
recovery plan? 

a) Yes. 

b) Yes. 

7.  

Section 1.4.6.1. – Technical 
Requirements 

Is the vendor expected to establish a new 
800 number?  

No. 

8.  

Section 1.4.6.7. – Technical 
Requirements 

What is the purpose of the Citrix Client 
software? 

As Bridges is not web-based, it establishes access to the application server. 

9.  

Section 1.6. – Contract Period 

a) When is this expected to go before 
Governor and Executive Council? 

b) How soon after contract approval is the 

a) The intent is to have this before G&C before the close of 2016. 

b) Sixty (60) days from the contract start date.  



  

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services  
After-Hour Access to Division for Children, Youth and Families  
#RFP-2017-DCYF-06-AFTER 

 

 

#RFP- 2017-DCYF-06-AFTER   
Official Q&A 

No. Question Answer 
vendor expected to “go live”? 

10.  

Section 2.1. – After-Hour Access to DCYF 
Child Protection 

How will the functions of a Statewide 
Assessment Team be fulfilled during the 
hours of 8pm through 8am? 

DCYF will have on-call staff to respond to imminent risk situations between the 
hours of 8:00 pm and 8:00 am. 

11.  

Section 2.1. - After-Hour Access to DCYF 
Child Protection 

a)   Is there a record of estimated call 
lengths for each type of call?  

b)   If yes, is this available by day/time of 
day/weekends? 

a)  No. 

b)  N/A 

12.  

Section 3.2.1.1. – Scope of Work 

May the vendor use cell phones to answer 
calls? 

Yes.  

 

13.  

Section 3.2.1.3. – Scope of Work 

a) Are there expected workarounds to 
receive emails and faxes for a vendor 
that opts to provide services off-site?  

b) What is the expected volume of emails 
and faxes after hours?    

a) Any workarounds is the responsibility of the vendor.   

b) No data is available. 

14.  

Section 3.2.1.4. – Scope of Work 

If an assessment is completed and the need 
is critical, will the vendor have access to all 
foster parents, vendors and clinicians for an 
emergency intake? 

The vendor will have access to DCYF’s Emergency Foster Placement List and to 
DCYF on-call staff.  
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15.  Section 3.2.2. – Scope of Work 

What is the maximum response time for 
faxes and emails? 

 
The maximum response time is 15 minutes. 

16.  Section 3.2.2. – Scope of Work 

What is an average call volume on nights 
and week-ends? 

 

No data is available. 

17.  Sections 3.5. – Emergency Responses 

a)    Are there available guidelines for when 
to call law enforcement immediately? 

b)    What decision-making authority does 
the vendor have if DCYF on-call staff 
does not respond to vendor calls within 
established time-frames?  

 
 
 
a) Information will be provided during DCYF training. 

b) The vendor has no decision-making authority. Vendor will have access to          
      on-call DCYF administrator if on-call staff is unavailable. 
 
 

18.  Section 3.7.1. – DCYF Foster Parent 
Support 

Is the vendor expected to provide initial 
support? 

  
 
No. 

19.  

Section 3.10.1. – Special Investigations     

What is the conflict of interest protocol if the 
vendor: 

a)     Needs to file a report of child abuse 
and or neglect?  

b)     Is the subject of a report?    

a) Vendor will contact on-call administrator if perceived conflict of interest arises. 

b) Vendor will contact on-call administrator if vendor is the subject of a report. 
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20.  

Section 3.15.1.1.3. – Program Staffing 

a)     How many screeners is the vendor 
expected to provide? 

b)     Can the vendor determine the number 
of screeners needed based upon call 
volume experience?  

c)     May the Program Director and Program 
Supervisor also respond to calls?  

a) No number is currently specified. 

b) Yes. No data is currently available.  

c) Yes. 

21.  

Section 3.15. – Staffing Requirements 

a) Is there a requirement that any of our 
call center staff hold licenses in NH? 

b) If yes, can the Department provide 
links or references to these 
requirements? 

a) No.  

b) N/A 

22.  
Section 3.15.3.2. – Hiring Requirements 

Can you define “timely manner”?  
See Section 3.15.3.2. 

23.  

Section 3.15.4.4. – Vendor orientation and 
Training 

a)     Can each training be held on two 
separates dates in order to have 
vendor staff who are not in the training 
provide coverage of the vendor's 
current ongoing call center functions?  

b)     Can DCYF trainers provide training at     
vendor’s off-site location? 

a) No. 

b) No. The contracted vendor will be required to train at NH DCYF.  
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24.  

Section 3.16.5.1. – Performance 
Expectations and Measures/Deliverables 

Do the numbers requested for the caller 
satisfaction survey refer to calls or non-
duplicative callers? 

All non-duplicative calls. 

25.  

Section 3.17.2. – Culturally and 
Linguistically Appropriate Standards   

Will the vendor be included on the 
Department’s TTY Line or should the vendor 
include TTY expenses in its proposal? 

Vendor does not have to budget for this item. 

26.  

Section 3.17.5. – Culturally and 
Linguistically Appropriate Standards   

Will the vendor be included on the 
Department’s Language Line contract or 
should the vendor include Language Line 
expenses in its proposal? 

Department will explore securing vendor access to Department’s Language Line.  

27.  

Section 3.18.1.1. – Additional Security 
Requirements (Off-Campus Work 
Facilities) 

May Department data reside in the same 
database as data from the Vendor’s other 
clients if it is kept separate and secure at 
vendor’s off-site location? 

No. 

28.  

Section 4.1. – Available Funds 

Is there a stated amount of funding 
available?  

  

No. 
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29.  

Section 6.2. – Procurement Timetable 
 
Is there an expected date for when the 
successful vendor is notified? 
 

Upon the conclusion of the review process. 

30.  

Appendix C – Budget Form 

Are there any expectations that the vendor 
would be responsible for marketing? 

 

No. 

31.  

Appendix G – Additional Technical 
Requirements (Off-Site Only) 

May vendor’s IT professional talk with the 
Department’s IT professional to address the 
technical requirements as many of them 
may be met through other means? 

Yes, after vendor selection. 

32.  

Appendix G – Additional Technical 
Requirements (Off-Site Only) 

Is it possible for DCYF to maintain hosting of 
the servers and provide the vendor with 
remote access through a web portal or VPN 
connection? 

Vendor will have access to servers through Citrix. No VPN is available. 

33.  

Are there any conflicts for a vendor that is 
currently providing services to DCYF that 
would need to be addressed in the event of 
an award of this contract? 

This will be discussed upon vendor selection and certification. 

34.  
What are the application system 
requirements? 

For off-site vendor, see Section 1.4.6.8. 
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35.  

Can the vendor get the login portal address 
so they can start the initial process to get the 
BRIDGES portal lifted from their WebSense 
restrictions (assuming it is restricted today)? 
   

Yes, upon G&C contract approval. 

36.  

a)    How is the app accessed?   
 
b)    If this is a web application, what are the 

browser requirements? 

a) Through Citrix software. 

b) N/A 

37.  Is a VPN connection required?   No. 

38.  
Are there any other resources or 
applications that the vendor would need to 
access?   

No, but see Section 1.4.6.4. re: Microsoft Outlook. 

39.  
What Citrix Client Software License is 
required and what would make the Citrix 
software required vs. not required?     

License will be provided by the state.  Contracted vendor will need to download 
Citrix software. 

40.  
Within BRIDGES does the vendor have 
access to report on their call volume?    

No. 

41.  
Will the Department permit a vendor to use 
CMS software that records their calls?  

The vendor is not permitted to audio record any calls. The vendor is permitted to 
record the number of calls received. 

 


